

CHAPTER 526—S. F. No. 1469

[Not Coded]

An act relating to the salary of the county treasurer in Crow Wing county.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **Crow Wing county; treasurer's salary.** In Crow Wing County the county treasurer shall receive an annual salary of Eight Thousand Dollars (\$8000) commencing January 1, 1961.

Sec. 2. Laws 1957, Chapter 526, is repealed.

Sec. 3. This act shall take effect when it is approved by a resolution adopted by a majority vote of the county board of Crow Wing County and upon compliance with Laws 1959, Chapter 368.

Approved April 20, 1961.

CHAPTER 527—S. F. No. 1480

An act relating to the probation department in the county of Hennepin, its creation, appointment of its officers and employees and the duties thereof; authorizing the entry of judgment and creating rights by subrogation in certain cases; amending Minnesota Statutes 1957, Sections 487.01 and 487.03.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 487.01, is amended to read:

Hennepin county probation and investigation department, creation. There is hereby established in ~~all counties~~ of this state ~~new or hereafter~~ having a population of more than 416,000, ~~and constituting a single judicial district the county of Hennepin,~~ a probation and investigation department in connection with the district court of ~~any~~ such county in charge of an officer to be known as director of court services.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 487.03, is amended to read:

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Duties of department. The duties of such department shall be:

(1) To undertake the supervision of all persons placed on probation or parole by any of the judges of said court, to keep accurate records of such supervision, and to report to the court as to such probation or parole as directed by any of the judges of the court;

(2) To be present when court is in session and so directed by any one of said judges;

(3) To perform the duties required of probation officers by chapter 521;

(4) To assist in administering the law providing for all allowances to mothers of dependent children, and to perform the duties of investigation and supervision, as found in Mason's Minnesota Statutes of 1927, Sections 8671 to 8689;

(5) To provide for mental and physical examination of persons coming under the juvenile court law, and to provide for necessary mental, dental, surgical, and nursing care for such persons;

(6) To make such investigation as the court may direct concerning the circumstances of the offense, criminal record and social history of any person convicted of crime, and when deemed appropriate to obtain a physical and mental examination of such defendant and report thereon;

(7) To make collections of support money in divorce actions when ordered by a judge of the court for the benefit of children or indigent mothers and children jointly; to collect money ordered to be paid in desertion and abandonment cases; and to make collections of money or property when ordered to be paid as restitution or reimbursement, and to turn over such money or property to the person or persons entitled thereto;

(8) To make investigations in divorce cases of children and home conditions when directed by a judge of said court, and also to exercise supervision over children in such divorce cases as the court may direct;

(9) When directed by a judge of the court and when the person having custody of children is indigent, to take such steps as may be necessary to compel persons ordered to pay money for the support of children when in default; to take such steps as may be necessary to compel persons to

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

make reimbursement to comply with the order of court when in default; to institute, if necessary, contempt proceedings in behalf of such person or persons to whom money or property is ordered to be paid or delivered. It shall be the duty of the county attorney to conduct such contempt proceedings when directed by one of the judges of the court. *The county attorney in such contempt proceedings or upon a separate motion supported by order to show cause and affidavits may move the court that any defaults or delinquent payments under such order of support be reduced to a judgment against the defaulting party, and where the county welfare board or any other public agency has advanced and expended funds to supply the unmet needs of such children because of such default by failure to pay the court order, such county welfare board or other public agency shall be subrogated and may recover under such judgment to the extent that public funds were expended for the care and support of such children;*

(10) To perform such other duties for the protection of children and indigent mothers and children as may be directed by the court, including the exclusive operation, control and administration of any juvenile detention facility provided by such county for the temporary custody of delinquent children.

Sec. 3. *This act shall become effective upon its approval by a majority of the governing body of the county of Hennepin and upon compliance with Laws 1959, Chapter 368.*

Approved April 20, 1961.

CHAPTER 528—S. F. No. 1481

An act relating to the acquisition of lands for addition to Frontenac state park; amending Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 85.071, Subdivision 1.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 85.071, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. The Commissioner of Conservation is authorized to acquire by gift, purchase, or transfer of lands from the State Highway Department or other state departments and not needed for use by said departments all land

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.